JPL D- 57151

ECOsystem Spaceborne Thermal Radiometer Experiment on Space Station (ECOSTRESS) Mission

Level 1 Product User Guide

Version 3 April 20, 2022

Michael M. Smyth Thomas L. Logan ECOSTRESS Algorithm Development Team Jet Propulsion Laboratory California Institute of Technology

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current version is in the ECOSTRESS DocuShare Library (*) at https://bravo-lib.jpl.nasa.gov/docushare/dsweb/View/Library-509 (*) Access limited to user group

National Aeronautics and Space Administration



Jet Propulsion Laboratory 4800 Oak Grove Drive Pasadena, California 91109-8099 California Institute of Technology This research was carried out at the Jet Propulsion Laboratory, California Institute of Technology, under a contract with the National Aeronautics and Space Administration.

Reference herein to any specific commercial product, process, or service by trade name, trademark, manufacturer, or otherwise, does not constitute or imply its endorsement by the United States Government or the Jet Propulsion Laboratory, California Institute of Technology.

© 2022. California Institute of Technology. Government sponsorship acknowledged.

Change History Log

Revision	Effective Date	Prepared by	Description of Changes
Version 1	10/2/2018	Mike Smyth	User Guide first version
Version 2	6/19/2019	Mike Smyth	Updates to account for MSU failure anomaly.
Version 3	4/20/2022 9/30/2022	Tom Logan	Build 7.0 Update Text Clarification

Contacts

Readers seeking additional information about this product may contact the following:

Mike Smyth

MS 169-315 Jet Propulsion Laboratory 4800 Oak Grove Dr. Pasadena, CA 91109 Email: *Mike.M.Smyth@jpl.nasa.gov* Office: (818) 354-9812

Contents

1	Intr	oduction	6
	1.1	File Formats for L1B Products	7
	1.2	L1B Products	7
	1.3	Product Availability	8
2	Dese	cription of Instrument	8
3	Rad	iance	9
	3.1	Description of File Format	10
		3.1.1 Data fields	10
		3.1.2 Metadata	10
	3.2	Overlap in Radiance Image	13
	3.3	Special Data Value and Data Quality Indicators.	13
		3.3.1 Band to Band, Pixel Not Seen	14
		3.3.2 Missing Scan Data	15
	3.4	Description of Flipping Data	16
	3.5	Radiometric Accuracy	17
	3.6	SWIR Data	17
4	Geo	location	17
	4.1	Description of File Format	17
	4.2	Geolocation Accuracy	18
5	Mar	o Product	19
	5.1	Description of File Format	20
	5.2	Description of Rotated Map	21
6	Refe	erences	23

1 Introduction

This is the user guide for the ECOSTRESS Level-1 Radiance, Geolocation, and Map products. The ECOsystem Spaceborne Thermal Radiometer Experiment on Space Station (ECOSTRESS) mission consists of a thermal infrared (TIR) multispectral scanner with five spectral bands operating between 8 and 12.5 µm. The TIR data is acquired at a spatial resolution of approximately 35m x 70m with a swath width of approximately 400 km. The Level-1B Radiance product resamples the 5 TIR bands so they are spatially co-registered, and averages in the line direction to produce roughly 70m x 70m pixels. The Level-1B Geolocation product corrects the ISS reported ephemeris and attitude data by image matching with a global ortho-base (based on Landsat data), and then using this improved navigation information to assign latitude and longitude values to each of the Level-1 Radiance pixels. When image matching is successful, the data is geolocated to better than 50-meter accuracy. In addition, related information about solar and view geometry, surface height, and fraction of pixel on land versus water are generated.

Both the Level-1B Radiance (L1B_RAD) and Level-1B Geolocation (L1B_GEO) products are swath products, with latitude/longitude geo-tagging. The Level-1B Map (L1B_MAP_RAD) product does a second resampling step to produce map registered data in a standard latitude/longitude grid. The latitude/longitude grid is rotated to approximately the orbit path. However, this product has been deprecated beginning with Build 7.0 and replaced by a similar L2 product.

The algorithms and data content of the Level-1B products are briefly described in this guide, with the purpose of providing a user with sufficient information about the content and structure of the data files to enable the user to access and use the data, in addition to understanding the uncertainties involved with the product. Overviews of the file formats are provided first followed by descriptions of the algorithm and product contents including all metadata.

On September 29th 2018, ECOSTRESS experienced an anomaly with its primary mass storage unit (MSU). ECOSTRESS has a primary and secondary MSU (A and B). On December 5th, the instrument was switched to the secondary MSU and operations resumed with initial acquisitions over Australia and wider coverage resumed on January 9th 2019. The initial anomaly was attributed to exposure to high radiation regions, primarily over the Southern Atlantic Anomaly, and the acquisition strategy was revised to exclude these regions from future acquisitions. On March 14th 2019, the secondary MSU experienced an anomaly. Work was done to implement a direct streaming option, which bypasses the need for mass storage units. The streaming acquisition mode changes the format of the data being collected. Specifically, the new collection mode will eliminate the 1.6 μ m (SWIR), 8.2 μ m (TIR), and 9.0 μ m (TIR) bands. To simplify product formats, the L1 and L2 products will continue to contain the datasets for these bands, but the datasets will contain fill values. This will be seen in products generated after May 15th 2019, when the instrument resumed operations. These changes are described in the detailed product specifications.

A firmware update planned for late-2022/early-2023 will provide the ECOSTRESS Science Team with the ability to select either *three or five* TIR bands (not SWIR) for collection and download. Restoring the 8.2 µm and 9.0 µm bands (5-band case) however, permits fewer scenes per orbit versus the three-band case. Both options are expected to be employed in the future with un-imaged bands provided with fill values.

A description of the major components of the ECOSTRESS algorithm implemented in version 1 of the Level-1B Product Generation Executive (PGE) code are described in depth in the ATBD available at https://ecostress.jpl.nasa.gov/products. The primary purpose of this document is to supply sufficient information about the content and structure of the data files so that users will be able to access and use

the data with confidence.

From the beginning of build 7, a radiance calibration has been applied to correct the ~ 1 K cold bias that has been observed in previous studies. These values are described in Section 3.0 (Radiance).

1.1 File Formats for L1B Products

The ECOSTRESS L1B products are distributed in HDF5 format and can be read-in by HDF5 software. Beginning with Build 7.0, the HDF5 files will be compressed using internal HDF5 options. Information on Hierarchical Data Format 5 (HDF5) may be found at https://www.hdfgroup.org/HDF5/. The HDF format was developed by NCSA, and has been widely used in the scientific domain. HDF5 can store two primary types of objects: datasets and groups. A dataset is essentially a multidimensional array of data elements, and a group is a structure for organizing objects in an HDF5 file. HDF5 was designed to address some of the limitations of the HDF4. Using these two basic objects, one can create and store almost any kind of scientific data structure, such as images, arrays of vectors, and structured and unstructured grids. They can be mixed and matched in HDF5 files according to user needs. HDF5 does not limit the size of files or the size or number of objects in a file. The scientific data results are delivered as data fields with metadata describing information about the data. More detailed information on HDF5 data types may be found in the L1 Product Specification Document (PSD) available at https://ecostress.jpl.nasa.gov/products.

The L1B data product files contain one set of metadata describing information relevant to production, archiving, user services, input products, geolocation and analysis of data. This metadata listed in Table 3.1.2 are not described further in this user guide.

1.2 L1B Products

The L1B radiance and geolocation products are produced in swath format, i.e. each pixel is lat/lon tagged. The image scene (swath) consists of 44 scans of the instrument mirror, with each scan taking approximately 1.181 seconds, and each image scene taking approximately 52 seconds. Each image scene starts at the beginning of the first target area encountered during each orbit. Each orbit is defined as the equatorial crossing of an ascending International Space Station (ISS) orbit. The spatial resolution of the center pixel is approximately 70m \times 70m with 5632 pixels along track and 5400 pixels per line for each scene. The pixel size varies, with a resolution of about 90m x 90m at the edge of the swath.

The L1B attitude file is part of the L1B products. It contains the original set of attitude and ephemeris data generated by the ISS, which are used to start the geolocation process. The ISS generates 1 set of attituded and ephemeris sample per second, so each ECOSTRESS image scene covers approximately 52 sample sets. After the images are matched to the Landsat ortho base, the attitudes are refined, and also recorded into the L1B attitude file.

The L1B Map product is produced as a map registered product. It is in a rotated geographic projection. The spatial resolution of each pixel is set to 70m x 70m. This product has been deprecated beginning with Build 7.0.

Table 1.2.1 shows a summary of the L1B product characteristics.

Earth Science Data Type (ESDT)	Product Level	Data Dimension	Spatial Resolution	Temporal Resolution	Map Projection
ECO_L1B_RAD	L1	5632 lines by 5400 pixels per line	70 m (center)	Swath	None (lat,lon tagged)
ECO_L1B_GEO	L1	5632 lines by 5400 pixels per line	70 m (center)	Swath	None (lat,lon tagged)
ECO_L1B_ATT	L1	1 orbit of Attitude quaternions and Ephemeris X,Y,Z position and velocity vectors covering all scenes in orbit	7 km	1 second	None
ECO_L1B_MAP_RAD (Build 6 only)	L1	Varies	70 m (all pixels)	Swath	Rotated geographic

Table 1.2.1: Summary of the ECOSTRESS L1B products

1.3 Product Availability

The ECOSTRESS L1B products will be made available at the NASA Land Processes Distributed Active Archive Center (LPDAAC) using the AppEEARS web tool (<u>https://appeears.earthdatacloud.nasa.gov</u>).

2 Description of Instrument

The TIR instrument operates as a push-whisk scanner, collecting 256 pixels in the cross-whisk direction for each spectral channel, which enables a wide swath and high spatial resolution. As the ISS moves forward, the scan mirror sweeps the focal plane ground projection in the cross-track direction. The different spectral bands are swept across a given point on the ground sequentially. A wide continuous swath is produced, with a nominal width of 400 km. In Level-1 Radiance, the 256 pixels in one scan are averaged to 128 pixels, giving a nearly square pixel of approximately 70m x 70m in the center of the image. The scan mirror rotates at a constant angular speed sweeping the focal plane image 53 degrees across nadir. The wide angular range gives a variable pixel size of approximately 70m x 70m in the center of the swath, growing to about 90m x 90m at the edge of the swath.

A conceptual layout for the instrument is shown in Figure 2.1.



Figure 2.1: ECOSTRESS TIR Scanning Scheme

Figure 2.2 provides a more detailed view of the focal plane array, with the corresponding axis along the scanning and cross-scanning directions.



Figure 2.2: Focal plane axis convention. Y is the scanning direction and X the cross-scan (ISS velocity) direction

3 Radiance

Raw DN values for each ECOSTRESS image are individually calibrated by L1A_CAL software into Gain/Offset parameters that are passed to L1B for processing into the Level-1B radiance product. After three years of operation, a small bias was detected in the radiance product, and beginning with Build 7.0, and an additional Gain/Offset is applied to correct the radiance product. These values are:

0.8757 0.9429 0.9148 0.9507 0.9448 Gain Offset 0.9680 0.5110 0.6181 0.5208 0.5515 Band 8.2µm 8.7µm 9.0µm 10.5µm 12.0µm This product is also used to co-register the ECOSTRESS TIR bands to a Landsat-7 orthobase to produce Latitude/Longitude georeference information.

3.1 Description of File Format

3.1.1 Data fields

The ECOSTRESS Level-1 Radiance product has data fields for each of the 5 bands of radiance, associated data quality indicators, and ancillary data.

Field Name	Туре	Units	Field Data
Group	Radiance		
radiance_1	Float32	Watt/m2/sr/um	TIR 8.285 microns. For data acquired May 15 th 2019 this is fill data only
radiance_2	Float32	Watt/m2/sr/um	TIR 8.785 microns.
radiance_3	Float32	Watt/m2/sr/um	TIR 9.060 microns. For data acquired May 15 th 2019 this is fill data only
radiance_4	Float32	Watt/m2/sr/um	TIR 10.522 microns.
radiance_5	Float32	Watt/m2/sr/um	TIR 12.001 microns
data_quality_1	Int8	None	
data_quality_2	Int8	None	
data_quality_3	Int8	None	
data_quality_4	Int8	None	
data_quality_5	Int8	None	
Group	SWIR		
swir_dn	Int16	DN	Uncalibrated SWIR data with Deprecated Counts Correction. For data acquired May 15 th 2019 this is fill data
Group	FPIEencoder		
EncoderValue	Uint32	None	Mirror encoder value for each focal plane in each scan
Group	Time		
line_start_time_j2000	Float64	Second	J2000 time of fir pixel in line

Table 3.1.1: The fields in the ECOSTRESS L1B Radiance product

3.1.2 Metadata

Archived with the HDF5 fields are metadata describing characteristics of the data. Contents of these

ECOSTRESS L1 User Guide D-57151

attributes were determined and written during generation of the product by the JPL Process Control System (PCS) and are used in archiving and populating the database at the LPDAAC to support user services. Descriptions of the metadata are given here to assist the user in understanding them. ECOSTRESS products consist of a set of standard metadata (Table 3.1.2) and product-specific metadata (Table 3.1.3).

Name	Туре	Size	Example		
Group	StandardN	StandardMetadata			
AncillaryInputPointer	String	variable	Group name of ancillary file list		
AutomaticQualityFlag	String	variable	Build 6: PASS/FAIL (co-registration) Build 7: Best, Good, Suspect, or No Match		
AutomaticQualityFlag- Explanation	String	Variable	Additional information describing geolocation (co-registration) quality		
BuildId	String	variable	0700		
CRS (Coordinate Ref Sys)	String	Variable	proj=utm zone=38 south datum=WGS84 units=m no_defs type=crs		
CampaignShortName	String	variable	Primary		
CollectionLabel	String	variable	ECOv002 (collection 2)		
DataFormatType	String	variable	NCSAHDF5		
DayNightFlag	String	variable	Day		
EastBoundingCoordinate	LongFloat	8			
FieldOfViewObstruction	String	Variable	NO		
ImageLines	Int32	4	5632		
ImageLineSpacing	Float32	4	68.754		
ImagePixels	Int32	4	5400		
ImagePixelSpacing	Float32	4	65.536		
InputPointer	String	variable	InstrumentShortName String variable ECOSTRESS		
InstrumentShortName	String	variable	ECOSTRESS		
LocalGranuleID	String	variable	ECOv002_		
LongName	String	variable	ECOSTRESS		
NorthBoundingCoordinate	LongFloat	8			
PGEName	String	variable	L1B_RAD_PGE		

Table 3.1.2: Standard Metadata Provided in ECOSTRESS XML (and MET) Files

Name	Туре	Size	Example
PGEVersion	String	variable	v1.2.5
PlatformLongName	String	variable	ISS
PlatformShortName	String	variable	ISS
PlatformType	String	variable	Spacecraft
ProcessingEnvironment	String	Variable	Linux
ProcessingLevelDescription	String	variable	Level 1B Radiance Parameters
ProcessingLevelID	String	variable	1
ProducerAgency	String	variable	JPL
ProducerInstitution	String	variable	Caltech
ProductionDateTime	String	variable	2022-03-31T15:29:26.671Z
ProductionLocation	String	variable	ECOSTRESS Science Computing
RangeBeginningDate	String	variable	2021-03-24
RangeBeginningTime	String	variable	00:32:29.066434
RangeEndingDate	String	variable	2021-03-24
RangeEndingTime	String	variable	00:37:29.066434
RegionID	String	variable	38LNH
SISName	String	variable	Level 2 Product Specification Document
SISVersion	String	variable	Preliminary
SceneBoundaryLatLonWKT	String	Variable	POLYGON ((44.8
SceneID	String	variable	019
ShortName	String	variable	L1B_RAD
SouthBoundingCoordinate	LongFloat	8	
StartOrbitNumber	String	variable	15383
StopOrbitNumber	String	variable	15383
WestBoundingCoordinate	LongFloat	8	

Name	Туре	Size	Example
Group	L1RadN	Ietadata	

Name	Туре	Size	Example
			Wavelengths available in the L1 product for bands 1-6:
BandSpecification	Float32	μm	1.6, 8.2, 8.7,9.0, 10.5, 12.0; 0=fill data
QAPercentMissingData	Float32	Percentage	Percentage of data missing from L0B
RadScanLineOrder	String	Variable	One of "Reverse line order" or "Line order". Indicates if we have reversed the order line order for each scan to produce image with separate scans aligned.

3.2 Overlap in Radiance Image

By the design of the ECOSTRESS instrument, there is an overlap in between each ECOSTRESS scan segment and the next of about 15-30 pixels depending upon the altitude of the ISS. This results in a clear line artifact in the radiance image, and a repeat of data (see 3.2.1).

Note that this overlap is fully accounted for in the Level-1B Geolocation product where the geotagging will correctly give pixels in adjacent scans the same ground location.

If you desire to work with data that does not have this type of overlap, the Level-1B Map product (or L2 equivalent) averages the overlap data to produce data without overlap.



Figure 3.2.1: Illustration of ECOSTRESS Overlap between scans.

3.3 Special Data Value and Data Quality Indicators.

The radiance data has special fill values of certain conditions, and the data_quality has corresponding

values. The special fill values are shown in 3.3.1 and the data_quality values in 3.3.2. The conditions indicated are described in the next two sections.

Data Condition	Value
Pixel not seen	-9997.0
Missing data due to striping (not filled in)	-9998.0
Missing/bad data	-9999.0

Table 3.3.1: Special Radiance Data Values

Table 3.3.2: Data Quality Values

Data Quality/Condition	Value
Good	0
Missing stripe data, filled in	1
Missing stripe data, not filled in	2
Missing/bad data	3
Not seen	4

3.3.1 Band to Band, Pixel Not Seen

By the design of the ECOSTRESS instruments, bands don't see a particular cross scan pixel at the same time. When we co-register bands to the reference band, there are differences in the ground footprint and we miss pixels at the edges of the scanner for some bands (see Figure 3.3.1.1). For pixels that have this property, we use a special fill value in the radiance data fields, a "Pixel is not seen" value of -9997.0, and a corresponding data_quality value of 4.



Figure 3.3.1.1: Example of "Pixel not seen"

3.3.2 Missing Scan Data

During testing, an instrument artifact was encountered in ECOSTRESS bands 1 and 5. Both of these bands had 16 out of the 256 pixels that do not return any signal, resulting in a black "stripe" in the ECOSTRESS image.

The Level-1B radiance processing fills this data in using a machine learning algorithm. The algorithm is applied in the neighborhood of the missing scan data to train on the full 5 bands of good data and then used to predict the data missing in band 1 and band 5 due to the "striping" based on bands 2 through 4. For data acquired after May 15th 2019 the algorithm is modified to train on the 3 non-fill bands, and used to predict the data missing in band 5 only (band 1 contains only fill data).

When the process is successful, a radiance value is placed in the radiance image. To indicate that this value was filled in rather than a true measurement, the data_quality pixel value is set to the "Missing stripe data, filled in" value of 1. For instances where a pixel is not successfully filled in (e.g., band 2 through 4 is missing data), the radiance value is set to the value -9998.0 and the data_quality is set to the value "Missing stripe data, not filled in" value of 2.

A full report on the techniques and uncertainty analysis involved with the missing scan filling is available upon request from the science team. For example, total estimated errors in the retrieved L2 surface temperature and emissivity are elevated over the filled stripes due to the uncertainty involved with the interpolation techniques used.



Figure 3.3.2.1: Example of missing scan data with correction using simulated ASTER data over the Imperial Valley in Southern California

3.4 Description of Flipping Data

The ECOSTRESS instrument is oriented with the ISS so that in the nominal ISS orientation the readout of 256 cross-whisk pixels goes in the negative velocity direction. This means the raw data (L1A-Pixel data) will look "upside down" when visualized. This is fully accounted for in the instrument model, but results in data that is harder to visualize. To improve the visualization of the data, in L1B-Radiance processing we flip the presentation of the data (see Figure 3.4.1). The larger index cross-whisk pixel is presented first in each scan.

To accommodate docking, the ISS will sometimes fly with a nearly 180 degrees yaw (i.e., it "flies backwards"). In this configuration, the ECOSTRESS instrument is oriented in the positive velocity direction. The raw data will look "right side up". To improve visualization, the L1B-Radiance processing will not flip the presentation of the data.

The L1B-Radiance processing software detects which configuration in the ISS is flying in, and then "does the right thing" in determining if we present the scan in reverse line order or not.

To indicate what was done with the data, the "L1B_RADMetadata/RadScanLineOrder" field in the L1B_RAD product will be set to one of "Reverse line order" or "Line order".

Note that the L1B_GEO fully accounts for this. Users of the L1B_RAD product generally do not need to do any special handling based on the "L1B_RADMetadata/RadScanLineOrder" value, this is just given for informational purposes. This distinction is only important if there is a need to trace back to the raw L1A-Pixel data.



Figure 3.4.1: Raw order vs "Reversed Line" order

3.5 Radiometric Accuracy

ECOSTRESS Level-1 Radiance data shows high correlation with in-situ ground measurements (R2 = 0.99 in all bands). ECOSTRESS Builds 6 and earlier have a cold bias of approximately 0.7K. Beginning with Build 7.0, a new L1B parameter option allows the ECOSTRESS Science Team to apply Gain and Offset values to correct for the bias.

3.6 SWIR Data

In addition to the 5 thermal bands, ECOSTRESS has a SWIR (Short Wave Infrared) channel. The SWIR band has the same scan overlap, scan flipping, and stripping features as the thermal bands. The SWIR was intended to support geolocation and cloud detection without radiometric calibration or focal plane artifact correction. However, during on-orbit testing, the SWIR focal plane was determined to be photon-limited and has been deprecated. Collections after May 15, 2019 do not include a SWIR channel, although a placeholder file containing fill values will be present.

4 Geolocation

The geolocation product gives geo-tagging to each of the radiance pixels.

The geolocation processing corrects the ISS-reported ephemeris and attitude data by image matching with a global Landsat7 ortho-base, and then using this improved navigation information to assign latitude and longitude values to each of the Level-1 Radiance pixels. When image matching is successful, the data is geolocated to better than 50-meter accuracy. In addition, related information about solar and view geometry, surface height, and fraction of pixel on land vs. water is generated.

4.1 Description of File Format

The ECOSTRESS Level-1 Geolocation product has latitude, longitude and height of each ECOSTRESS Level-1 Radiance product pixel. In addition, it has view, solar geometry, and land fraction for each pixel. The fields are show in 4.1.1 and the product specific metadata in 4.1.2.

Field Name	Туре	Units	Field Data		
Group	Geolocation				
height	Float32	Meter			
land_fraction	Float32	Percentage	Percentage of pixel that is land		
latitude	Float64	Degrees			
line_start_time_j2000	Float64	Degrees	J2000 time of first pixel in line		
longitude	Float64	Degrees			
solar_azimuth	Float32	Degrees			
solar_zenith	Float32	Degrees			
view_azimuth	Float32	Degrees			
view_zenith	Float32	Degrees			

 Table 4.1.1: The fields in the ECOSTRESS L1B Geolocation product

Table 4.1.2: Product specific metadata for the ECOSTRESS L1B GEO product

Name	Туре	Size	Example	
Group	L1GEOMetadata			
AverageSolarZenith	Float64	Degrees	Average solar zenith angle for scene	
OrbitCorrectionPerformed	String	None	One of "True or "False"	
OverallLandFraction	Float64	Percentage	Overall land fraction for scene	

4.2 Geolocation Accuracy

The Level 1 processing is sometimes not able to perform image matching with our global ortho-base. When this occurs, we still produce a Level-1B Geolocation product, and subsequent L2 processing. However, the expected geolocation error is significantly larger.

Note that we look at all the scenes for an orbit. If we successfully match any of the scenes, the correction from that scene is applied to all the scenes in the orbit. This works because although the ISS attitude knowledge error can be large, it is slowly varying.

When we successfully match a scene in an orbit, the geolocation accuracy is better than 50 meters. Beginning with Build 7, if the co-registration is poor or fails, up to four re-tries are attempted (using modified parameters) to match the scene. However, we do encounter orbits where no scenes successfully match (Figure 4.2.1). This might occur because scenes are over water, or the scenes are cloudy, or we just have scenes without a lot of features to match. In these cases, the geolocation error is significantly larger. As described in the ATBD, the worst-case geolocation error for uncorrected data is 7 km. Typically we see smaller errors in the 2-4 km range when only the ISS attitude information is available for geolocation.



Figure 4.2.1: Orbital Geolocation from Scene Matching

We indicate if we have corrected the geolocation error with the metadata field "L1GEOMetadata/ OrbitCorrectionPerformed". For Build 6, this field is "True" if the data were corrected, and geolocation accuracy should be better than 50 meters. If this is "False", then the data was processed without correcting the geolocation and we have up to 7 km geolocation error. Beginning with Build 7.0, these data fields are:

Best – Image matching was performed for this scene. Good geolocation accuracy.

Good – Image matching was performed in a nearby scene. Good geolocation accuracy.

Suspect – Image matching occurred somewhere in the orbit. Expect increased error.

No Match – No matches in orbit. Expect large geolocation errors.

Users of the data should determine if they can tolerate larger geolocation errors. If not, then data with the "Suspect" and "No Match" fields may not be suitable.

5 Map Product

With Built 7.0, the L1B_MAP_RAD product is replaced by the L2G_RAD product. However, until all Build 6 products have been replaced, the L1B_MAP_RAD format information provided in this section may be useful.

The map product combines the Radiance and Geolocation products. It supplies map registered radiance data. It accounts for the overlap and variable pixel size in the radiance product, producing a fixed size output pixel.

Note that the data has been resampled, so users interested in working with data closest to that acquired by the instrument may want to work with the swath products. But for users interested in a simpler-to-use product, the map product is appropriate.

To minimize distortion introduced by the resampling, and to reduce the file size, a rotated geographic projection is used. The center line of the map projection is nominally aligned with the center line of the swath (see Figure 5.1).

Map, Oriented with up as North for Visualization



Map, rotated geographic projection, up is orbit path



Figure 5.1: Rotated geographic projection

5.1 Description of File Format

The ECOSTRESS Level-1 Map product has the fields shown in 5.1.1 and the product specific metadata in 5.1.2.

Field Name	Туре	Units	Field Data		
Group	Mapped/MapInformation				
CoordinateSystem	String	None	Well Known Text (WKT) describing coordinate system		
GeoTransform	Float64	None	Affine GeoTransform		
Group	Mapped				
data_quality_1	Int8	None			
data_quality_2	Int8	None			
data_quality_3	Int8	None			
data_quality_4	Int8	None			
data_quality_5	Int8	None			
height	Float32	Meter			
land_fraction	Float32	Percentage	Percentage of pixel that is land		
latitude	Float64	Degrees			

Table 5.1.1: The fields in the ECOSTRESS L1B MAP product

Field Name	Туре	Units	Field Data	
longitude	Float64	Degrees		
radiance_1	Float32	Watt/m2/sr/um	TIR 8.285 microns. For data acquired May 15 th 2019 this is fill data only	
radiance_2	Float32	Watt/m2/sr/um	TIR 8.785 microns.	
radiance_3	Float32	Watt/m2/sr/um	TIR 9.060 microns. For data acquired May 15 th 2019 this is fill data only	
radiance_4	Float32	Watt/m2/sr/um	TIR 10.522 microns.	
radiance_5	Float32	Watt/m2/sr/um	TIR 12.001 microns.	
solar_azimuth	Float32	Degrees		
solar_zenith	Float32	Degrees		
swir_dn	Int16	DN	Uncalibrated SWIR data with Deprecated Counts Correction. For data acquired after May 15 th 2019 this is fill data only	
view_azimuth	Float32	Degrees		
view_zenith	Float32	Degrees		

Table 5.1.2: Product specific metadata for the ECOSTRESS L1B_MAP_RAD product

Name	Туре	Size	Example
Group	L1GEOMetadata		
BandSpecification	Float32	μm	Wavelengths available in the L1 product for bands 1-6: 1.6, 8.2, 8.7,9.0, 10.5, 12.0; 0=fill data
OrbitCorrectionPerformed	String	None	One of "True or "False"
QAPercentMissingData	Float32	Percentage	Percentage of data missing from L0B

5.2 Description of Rotated Map

We specify the Map Information by giving the Coordinate System and an Affine GeoTransform. The Coordinate System is specified as OpenGIS Well Known Text strings (see for example https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Well-known_text or http://www.gdal.org/gdal_datamodel.html). This is given in the CoordinateSystem metadata.

We also specify the Affine GeoTransform (as for example in geotiff, see http://geotiff.maptools.org/spec/geotiff2.6.html or GDAL, see http://www.gdal.org/gdal datamodel.html). This is given in the GeoTransform. We have:

longitude $=GT_0 + GT_1i + GT_2j$ latitude $=GT_3 + GT_4i + GT_5j$

Where (i,j) is the sample, line of the pixel (starting at 0) and longitude and latitude are given in degrees.

Note that in addition, we provide the latitude and longitude fields in the file. This is completely redundant with the map projection information. We supply these fields as a convenience for software that expects this data, but you can directly calculate latitude and longitude from the map information.

6 References

Smyth, Mike & Leprince, Sebastien, Level-1B Resampling and Geolocation Algorithm Theoretical Basis Document (ATBD), JPL D-94641

Chu, Eugene, Logan, Thomas, & Smyth, Mike Level 1 Product Specification Document, JPL D-94634

Hulley, Glynn. Upon request, a full report on techniques and uncertainty analysis involved with the missing scan filling (planned paper/report by end of the year).